EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, January 25, 2017
6:00 pm
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Note, public notice of this meeting given by posting at the District Office, Levi Leonard Elementary
School Office, Theodore Robinson Intermediate School Office, J.C. McKenna Middle School Office, High
School Office, Evansville School District Web Site: Evansville.k12.wi.us, and by forwarding the agenda to
the Evansville Review, Union Bank & Trust and Eager Free Public Library.

I. Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Melissa Hammann Sandra Spanton Nelson
Eric Busse Jane Oberdorf
John Rasmussen Keith Hennig

Il. Approve Agenda.

Ill. Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:

Open Enroliment — February 6 — April 28, 2017

IV. Information & Discussion:

A.

mmo o w

J.C. McKenna All S.T.A.R.R.S. (Students That Are Respectful, Responsible and Safe)
Program.

Additional JV Baseball Level 2 and Additional Coach.

School Start Date Waiver for 2018-2019.

Hard to Fill Positions.

Administrator Compensation Committee 2016-2017 Recommendations.

2018 Potential Referendum Update.

V. Budget Finance — Chair, Hammann:

A.

B.

Discussion ltems:

1. 2015-2016 Financial Audit Statement Presentation.

2. Evansville Education Foundation Update.

3. Certified Staff Compensation Committee Update.

4. Administrators Compensation Committee Update.

5. Insurance Committee Update.

Develop Budget Finance Agenda Items for February 22, 2017, Meeting.

VI. Business (Action Items):

A
. Approval of Staff Changes: Hiring of Co-Curricular Coach, Middle School Track.

B
C.
D

Approval of School Start Date Waiver for 2018-2019.

Approval of Additional JV Baseball Level 2 and Additional Coach.

. Approval of Administrator Compensation Committee 2016-2017 Recommendations.



VII.

VIIL.

XI.

XIl.

Consent (Action Items):

A. Approval of Policy #343.3 Rule—Online Learning/Virtual School Program-Administrative
Rule.

B. Approval of January 11, 2017, Regular Meeting Minutes.

Policies — Chair, Hommann:
A. First Reading:
1. #352-School Sponsored Excursions.
2. #352.1-Overnight Excursion Regulations.
3. #352.1 Form-Overnight Excursion-Parent/Guardian Permission.
4. #352.2 (#352.3)-Planning and Supervision of School Trips.
B. Second Reading:
1. #342-Programs for Students With Disabilities.
2. #342.1-Local Agency Special Education Program.
3. #342.11-IDEA (Individuals With Disabilities Education Act) Team Process Summary.

First Reading of Employee Handbook Suggested Proposed Changes:
#1. Part 1, All Staff, Pg. 26, Section 5, 5.01, Payroll Cycle, Pay Periods.
#2. Part 1, All Staff, Pg. 26, Section 5, 5.01, Payroll Cycle Pay Periods.
#3. Part 1, All Staff, Pg. 30, Section 9, 9:01-9:03, Jury Duty.

#4. Clerical Items.

Board Development — Chair, Braunschweig:

A. 2016-2017 Continuous System Improvement (CSl) Plan.

B. Wisconsin Association of School Board January Convention.

C. Develop Board Development Agenda for February 22, 2017, Meeting.

Future Agenda’s —January 28, 2017, Special Meeting/Financial Retreat and February 8, 2017,
Regular Meeting Agendas.

Adjourn.

This notice may be supplemented with additions to the agenda that come to the attention of the
Board prior to the meeting. A final agenda will be posted and provided to the media no later than
24 hours prior to the meeting or no later than 2 hours prior to the meeting in the event of an
emergency.

Upon reasonable notice, all reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of people
with disabilities through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request
this service, contact the District Office at 340 Fair Street, 882-3387 or 882-3386. Persons needing
more specific information about the agenda items should call 882-3387 or 882-3386 at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Posted: 1/19/17



Iv.

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda/Briefs
Wednesday, January 25, 2017
6:00 pm
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Melissa Hammann Sandra Spanton Nelson
Eric Busse Jane Oberdorf
John Rasmussen Keith Hennig

Approve Agenda.

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the agenda as presented.

Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:
e Open Enrollment — February 6 — April 28, 2017

Information & Discussion:

A. J.C. McKenna All S.T.A.R.R.S. (Students That Are Rescpectful, Responsible and Safe)
Program — Last year, J.C. McKenna started a new tradition of recognizing students each
quarter who are positive representatives of the core character traits that make our middle
school a great place to learn. They are called J.C. McKenna All S.T.A.R.R.S. (Students That
Are Respectful, Responsible, and Safe). We are proud to celebrate these amazing students
at a breakfast with their families. At this celebratory breakfast, students will be presented
with a certificate and a letter describing their achievements. Staff members also speak
about each student and share the wonderful things that they bring to J.C. McKenna.
Teachers will be presenting. Enclosed is a letter that is sent home to parents.

B. Additional JV Baseball Level 2 and Additional Coach — Athletic Director, Mr. Cashore has
enclosed information. Action will take place later on in the meeting.

C. School Start Date Waiver for 2018-2019 — A number of school districts in the area are
looking at submitting a similar letter as the one enclosed. Mr. Roth gathered and shared
information with the Calendar Committee regarding a possible school calendar waiver. At
this time Mr. Roth recommends signing the waiver and delaying any change to the school
year calendar until the 2018-2019 school year. Action will take place later on in the
meeting.

D. Hard to Fill Positions — Ms. Hommann and Ms. Oberdorf will lead this discussion. Enclosed
is information.

Page 1 of 4



E. Administrator Compensation Committee 2016-2017 Recommendations — This Committee

has enclosed the 2016-2017 recommendations for the Administrators. Action will take
place later on in the meeting.

2018 Potential Referendum Update — Mr. Roth is waiting for the District’s legal counsel to
review the Architectural Firm Agreement with Bray. Board will act on this at the January 28
special meeting. After signing the Architectural Firm Agreement with Bray Architects, the
next step is to get out Construction Manager (CM) Requests for Proposals.

V. Budget Finance — Chair, Hammann:

Vi.

A. Discussion ltems:

1. 2015-2016 Financial Audit Statement Presentation — Mr. Swanson has enclosed the
statements.

2. Evansville Education Foundation Update — Ms. Hammann will give an update.

3. Certified Staff Compensation Committee Update — The Committee is meeting on
Monday, January 23, to develop a communication plan for certified staff, explaining the
compensation model.

4. Administrators Compensation Committee Update — Enclosed are the unapproved
minutes of January 9% meeting.

5. Insurance Committee Update — The next meeting is Monday, January 23.

B. Develop Budget Finance Agenda Items for February 22, 2017, Meeting.

Business (Action Items):
A. Approval of School Start Date Waiver for 2018-2019 —

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the District asking DPI to waive the school year start
date for 2018-2019.

. Approval of Staff Changes: Hiring of Co-Curricular Coach, Middle School Track — Please

approve the hiring of Tess Thornton, Middle School Track Coach. Tess will fill the new
middle school track position. Tess is an Evansville High School graduate, a former successful
track athlete and is currently teaching at Levi Leonard Elementary School. Tess will be paid
a stipend of 51,476.

Suggested Motion: | move we approve hiring Tess Thornton, as a Middle School Track Coach,
for a stipend of $1,476.

C. Approval of Additional JV Baseball Level 2 and Additional Coach -

Page 2 of 4



Suggested Motion: | move we approve an additional JV baseball level 2, and an additional
coach.

D. Approval of Administrator Compensation Committee 2016-2017 Recommendations —

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the Administrators’ Compensation Committee 2016-
2017 recommendations as presented.

VIl. Consent (Action Iltems): Do You Want To Remove Any Items?
A. Approval of Policy #343.3 Rule—Online Learning/Virtual School Program-Administrative
Rule.
B. Approval of January 11, 2017, Regular Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion: | move we approve the consent items: policy #343.3 Rule-Online
Learning/Virtual School Program-Administrative Rule and the January 11, 2017, regular
meeting minutes, as presented.

VIIl. Policies — Chair, Hammann: Policies enclosed.

A. First Reading:
1. #352-School Sponsored Excursions.

2. #352.1-Overnight Excursion Regulations.

3. #352.1 Form-Overnight Excursion-Parent/Guardian Permission.

4, #352.2 (#352.3)-Planning and Supervision of School Trips.

B. Second Reading:
1. #342-Programs for Students With Disabilities.

2. #342.1-Local Agency Special Education Program.

3. #342.11-IDEA (Individuals With Disabilities Education Act) Team Process Summary.

IX. First Reading of Employee Handbook Suggested Proposed Changes:
Enclosed are the unapproved minutes of the Employee Handbook Committee meeting on
January 9, 2017, and the suggested proposed changes, with input of the Committee.
#1. Part 1, All Staff, Pg. 26, Section 5, 5.01, Payroll Cycle, Pay Periods.
#2. Part 1, All Staff, Pg. 26, Section 5, 5.01, Payroll Cycle Pay Periods.
#3. Part 1, All Staff, Pg. 30, Section 9, 9:01-9:03, Jury Duty.
#4. Clerical Items.

Page 3 of 4



X. Board Development — Chair, Braunschweig:
A. 2016-2017 Continuous System Improvement (CS1) Plan — Upcoming meetings:
e Climate and Culture — February 21
e Communication and Community Engagement -
® Facilities, Operations and Transportation — January 30
e Staff and Student Teaching and Learning — February 14
e Technology —January 24

B. Wisconsin Association of School Board January Convention — Mr. Busse, Mr. Rasmussen,
Mr. Roth, and Mr. Swanson will debrief on the convention.

C. Develop Board Development Agenda for February 22, 2017, Meeting.

XI. Future Agenda’s — January 28, 2017, Special Meeting/Financial Retreat and February 8,
2017, Regular Meeting Agendas.

Xil. Adjourn.

Suggested Motion: | move we adjourn the meeting.

FOR YOUR INFORMATION

1. Upcoming Board Meetings:
- Saturday, January 28, 8:00 am
- February 8, 2017
- February 22, 2017

Page 4 of 4



J.C. McKenna All S.T.A.R.R.S.

B

January 9, 2017

Dear Parent(s)/Guardian(s) of

It is with great pleasure that we invite you and your child to our Breakfast of Champions
recognition! Your child has demonstrated outstanding contributions to our learning community,
and has been selected as one of our J.C. McKenna All S.T.A.R.R.S. (Students That Are
Respectful, Responsible and Safe). We would like to honor your child on Friday, January 20,
2017, at a breakfast and short program from 7:15 a.m. until 7:45 a.m. We look forward to seeing
you, and please feel free to invite grandparents or other significant people in your child’s life.

If you have any questions, please contact Jen Holm, School Counselor, at 608-882-3304 or
holmj@evansville.k12.wi.us. Also, so we may plan accordingly, please RSVP to Mrs. Holm
with the number of people that will be attending by this Friday, January 13.

Congratulations and thank you for making our middle school a great place to learn!

Sincerely,

Mr. Jason Knott
Principal
J.C. McKenna Middle School



BASEBALL JV2 PROPOSAL

Proposal:

Add JV2 (Frosh) level to the high school baseball program due to an increase in participants. The normal
range of participants has been 23 to 30 over the past 10 years for varsity and JV1 levels combined. The
2017 season is predicted to have 40 participants and 19 are incoming frosh. Adding the JV2 level to our
current programming will provide our incoming frosh an opportunity to participate and develop in our
high school baseball program. The proposal would include a 10-14 game schedule.

District Costs:

Coach:

7 home contests requiring 2 umpires ($48 each) for each home contest=5$672

7 away contests requiring transportation to and from the contest estimated at=$1225
Total estimated District Cost=51,897

All additional startup costs (uniforms, equipment and supplies) will be covered by Baseball
Youth of Evansville resources.

This proposal would need approval from the Board of Education to hire an additional coach for the
proposed JV2 level at a cost of $1.



December 5, 2016

School Calendar DPI Waiver Rationale

Wisconsin is one of the few states which has a law that established a school start
date. Wisconsin Act 16 eliminated the provision which allowed school districts to
commence its school term before September 1. Act 16 allows a school district to
commence its school term before September 1 if the school board makes a request
(including the reason) to the Department of Public Instruction (DPI). The department
may only grant a request if it determines that there are extraordinary reasons for
granting it. DPI was also required to develop admlnlstratlve #to.implement and
administer this provision.

calendar developed would require an appi
start on August 21, 2017.

The current law is not in the bes

gislature needs to address
llow all school districts in

August 21, students and even parents are ready

: ing August 21st, students would then finish the year

S than June 6th. It is difficult for students to focus on school

| day once we hit the month of June: the later into June

ng inclement weather days) the more difficult it is for students

to focus on sch

2. Increased Preparation for ACT and Advanced Placement testing:
By starting school on Monday, August 21, our students taking AP tests, and ACT
tests would have 11 more instructional days to prepare, study and receive
classroom instruction prior to taking these high stakes assessments.

3. State Mandated Assessments:
By starting school on Monday, August 21, our students taking state mandated
assessments would have significantly more instructional days to prepare, study



and receive classroom instruction prior to taking the required assessments.

4. Post Secondary Schedule Alignment:
We are trying to encourage students to participate in youth options, course
options, and dual credit classes: therefore, our calendar needs to be more in line
with the post secondary school calendars. Most post secondary schools begin
classes in mid-August. If we have a student take a youth options class at college
with the way our current school calendar is set up, they will start their college
classes two or three weeks before our school district classes begin.

5. lllinois Schools:
As a district that borders lllinois, we witness qur partners

-border start

that reside in lllinois. The tourist argument to sta
not a valid argument.

6. Co-curricular Schedule:

The co-curricular schedule makes it nearly
vacations in August, thus ne [

and securing quality coache

are declining and itis b e diffi qualified coaches because
of the reluctance to giv ks ner break. The following is

Games/Contests Before Augus
21st

Having this many contests prior to the start of school inhibits participation
including school and community spirit. As a school district that recently
witnessed the community fervor surrounding our football team which made it to
sectional finals, it is disheartening to know that next year's student-athletes will
have three games prior to the start of school where it's inevitable they will see
less attendance at those games from fellow students and community members.

7. Deer Season Absentee Rate:
Each school district has its unique circumstances when it comes to the school



calendar and events that influence those decisions. In our district, and in many
others across the state, one of those events happens to be deer season. We
really have two options regarding our school calendar and deer season.

« Have school on Monday and Tuesday of that week and take
Wednesday, Thursday (Thanksgiving Day) and Friday off. We
chose this option this past year and saw a significant spike in our
absentee rate. We witnessed three times the norm of student
absences on Monday and Tuesday of deer hunting week. This
made it very difficult for our teachers to deliver instruction with so
many students absent.

« Our second option is to take the entire Week@of[ We are
considering utilizing this opti
the norm of our student body
achievement gap and providing s
experience for all students. Sinct
of Labor Day weekend for the 201 71
to start school on Tuesday

the state. If we ) is local decision would
have less of a L or . their families. The start
date law ham ~ al decisions that are in the

8. Local Control:

e of Wisconsin needs the authority to start the
est suits that school district and community. This

Each school:
school yea

is done.n

wher

w nts to start the school year in August, September 1
or after y t Id be a local decision. We need to do what is best
for our their families and our communities

9. Republican Platf :
Wisconsin and the nation recently elected members of the Republican Party into

majority party control. Based on language of the Republican Platform 2016, “Big
government undermines federalism” and “local taxpayers can decide for
themselves what is best for their own communities” as rational for why local
elected school officials should determine school start dates. Why are our elected
Republican officials not adhering to the virtues of the party by providing more
local control and allowing locally elected school board members to determine
when their school year should start and end?

10. Exceeding Revenue Cap:



The state feels it is in the best interest to have local control in funding schools by
mandating that school districts turn to the ballot box to exceed the revenue
cap. As a financially struggling school district, Clinton Community School District
was recently forced to ask the voters to approve an operating referendum. The
voters overwhelming supported the ballot initiative allowing the district to exceed
the revenue cap on a recurring basis. If the state feels it is in the best interest to
have local control in funding schools, why doesn't the state also feel it is in the
best interest to have local control as to when students of the district start school?

11. Charter and Voucher Schools:
Currently, independent charter schools and private voucher schools receive over
three hundred million dollars of taxpayer «
September 1st. Why is it that these entitie:

can't? Are their students more or less imp

learning opportunitie

Our State Superintendent and
that starting school pr rio"
Iearnlng The Cllnt

truction recognizes
tudents and good for
that all school districts

In summary, the Clir School District Board of Education and District
~waiver from the Department of Public Instruction

Sincerely,

Jim Brewer
Clinton Community School District, District Administrator



The Evansville Community School District Board of Education values all staff and their contributions to
creating a positive learning environment. The Board also acknowledges the challenges brought by Labor
Market Forces in the attraction and retention of high quality staff in shortage areas. Addressing the
issues piecemeal can lead to unexpected expenditures and may increase staff anxiety regarding pay
equity. Therefore, the board recommends this policy to create continuity in the area of hard-to-fill
positions.

(Stolen from WASB policy July 2016)

The Board, in its sole discretion shall grant a salary adjustment to any teacher in a shortage area.
Shortage areas are defined by the Board annually and shall be based on a combination of the DPI
emergency license applications for the most recent year and the Administrative Team’s experience in
hiring for these positions.

The granting of the additional salary adjustment is only applicable during individual contract year(s) in
which the staff member is certified and teaching in particular teaching assignment and certification area
that was provided additional salary adjustment. If the staff member transfers or is reassigned outside of
the area where additional salary adjustment was provided to an area where the above certification(s) or
degree(s) are not required, or they no longer possess such required industry certification(s) or degree(s)
they shall forfeit the salary adjustment. If such transfer or reassignment occurs during the course of an
individual contract year, the employee’s salary adjustment shall be pro-rated for the portion of the
contract year where they possessed the certification(s)/industry degree(s) and were teaching in the area
that received the additional salary adjustment.

’

The offer of the above additional salary adjustment is at the sole discretion of the District. The district
may modify, amend or delete this additional salary adjustment without violating the non-renewal
provisions set forth section 118.22, Wisconsin Statutes. Such modification, amendment or deletion shall
not affect the other terms and conditions of the teacher’s individual contract. Such modification,
amendment or deletion of the salary adjustment is not subject to the District grievance procedure.

Process:

1. The Board shall annually prioritize shortage areas using the most current emergency DPI license
data and district experience. The Policy Committee shall provide the annual updates of DPI
emergency license data and the Administrative Team shall provide the list based on hiring
experience to the Policy Committee. A spreadsheet indicating historical data shall be
maintained going forward for both lists. Also need: data needed by September 1 to the factor
into the hiring process.

2. Successful candidate for shortage area is offered a base salary commensurate with the

compensation schedule. '

Additional salary shall be offered depending on Board priority list.

Such supplemental salary is linked to the position and not the candidate/employee.

The district shall identify all employees in shortage areas.

The plan shall be phased in over multiple years, with the hardest to fill positions beginning in

year 1, and descending in priority order in the following years.

oV kW



7. The district shall create a budget line item for this purpose. Note: From Certified Staff
Compensation meetings, instead of taking from the Certified group only, pool all salaries and
take a percentage of that salary pool necessary/based on data to implement into the budget
process.

8. Shortage areas may fluctuate over time and must be reviewed annually to remain market
sensitive.

9. Supplemental salary offer shall be contingent on market forces, including but not limited to
market averages for that position and the number and quality of applicants.

Data for first priority listing 2016-17

Administrative Team Priority List created 5/31/16 1 is hardest to fill

District Wide % Emergency Licenses Granted 2015-16
1 Business Mgr 0.16%

1 Data Specialist NA

1 School Psychologist 0.41%

2 Director of Buildings and Grounds NA

2 Payroll NA

2 Technology Director NA

3 OT/PT/SPL NA

EHS

1 Agri-Science 0.65%

1 FACS 1.71%

1 Spanish 2.0%

1Tech Ed 1.3%

2 Business Ed 2.4%

2 Math 2.59%

2 Science 6.31%

3LMS 3.71%

3 Special Ed 27.12%
JCMMS

1 FACS 1.71%

1Tech Ed 1.3%

2 Business Ed 2.4%

3LMS 3.7%

3 Special Ed 27.12%

TRIS and LLE Both % Emergency Licenses Granted 2015-16
3LMS 3.7%

3 Special Education 27.12%




Emergency Licenses Granted in 2015-16 in descending order

Area % Emergency Licenses Granted (N=1695)
Special Ed 27.12%
Bilingual Ed 16.63%

Reading 7.08%
Science 6.31%
Early Childhood 5.72%
Administrators 5.66%
Instructional LMS 3.71%
Regular Ed 3.60%
Foreign Language 3.07%
Counseling 2.83%
Math 2.59%
Business 2.59%

Arts 2.42%

Alt Ed 1.95%

FACS 1.71%

Tech Ed 1.30%
Vocational Ed 1.18%
English 1.06%
Social Studies 0.94%
Driver’s Ed 0.83%
Ag 0.65%
Health 0.59%
Phys Ed 0.41%

1/11/17




Administrator Compensation Committee
2016-2017 Recommendations

1. Administrator salary increase of 1.5% for the 2016-2017 school year.
o The Business Manager will not receive the increase because he is new and has a current
salary.
e The Director of Curriculum and Instruction because she has already received an
increase.

2. Provide administrators with the same days off during the school year as the certified staff.
(See the attached school year calendar.)

3. Provide administrators with reimbursement for unused sick days at retirement as the certified
staff receive.

Employee Handbook — page 51

8. For teachers hired before July 1st, 2013, accrued sick time up to a limit of 880 hours shall
be paid out at $12.50 per hour at the time of retirement. Teachers with at least twenty
(20) years of service in the District may accumulate and be paid for up to 968 hours
payable upon retirement. Payment will be made into a non-elective TSA according to the
terms of the District 403b plan.



dMeé\tlng called by John Rasmussen
Note taker Janessa Katzenberger
Minutes approved | 1st: Jerry. 2nd: Barb; motion carried.

John Rasmussen, Melissa Hammann, Barb Dorn, Jerry Roth, Jason Knott, Joanie
Dobbs, Janessa Katzenberger, Scott Everson, Alice Murphy, and Brian Cashore

Attendees

Approved.‘ 1st; Melissa 20

. Alice; motion carried.

Action Items -~ . Person’ | Deadline

Melissa explained her revisions to the RV comparable - revisions helped paint a better picture describing
where each position stood as compared to similar positions in other districts.

Jerry explained that we, as an admin team, did not feel comfortable telling the Board what to do, but
suggested that we do not take from one person/group to pay for another person/group.

Barb noted that the MS average is less than an elementary school principal on the spreadsheet - and
questioned why a MS principal would be paid less than an elementary school teacher.

Melissa acknowledged that, typically a middle school principal is paid more than an elementary school
teacher, but the RV averages did not play out this way.

Scott suggested increasing vacation days for positions that are “under paid” to make them commensurate.
Jerry asked the input of Joanie and Barb and explained that he would like to see those days taken during
the summer, not school year. Joanie explained that they don't use their vacation days now.

Jerry asked to we provide our recommendation to the Board. Melissa explained that Janessa’s salary is the
lowest and that we talked about getting her to some level commensurate with others. She would like to
start there when bringing suggestions to the Board.

Melissa would like to recommend the payout for sick days during retirement and increase vacation days to
be the same as teachers during the school year.

Melissa is concerned about the current salaries as they are. Pupil Services and Elementary School principals
need to increase their salaries.

Jerry suggested to increase administrative salaries by 1.5% as budgeted and bring Dir of Student Services,
LLE and TRIS principals up to the 90%.

Melissa explained that the three positions listed may not also receive the 1.5% increase if they are getting
a pay raise. Alice and Steve also have their salaries in place, so they will not receive the 1.5% increase.

Page 1 of 2



Conversation continued around % vs. dollar increase:

Jerry suggested that, instead of a percentage we go to 90k for Janessa, 93k for elementary and
94k for Jason.

Melissa indicated that they are still very low.

Team discussed going with a percentage over a dollar amount. Melissa suggested moving
positions to the 88% mark this year and then 92% next year. This provides an equitable goal for
everyone.

Jerry does not see how an elementary/intermeidate school principal would make more than a
middle school principal. He cannot make less than the elementary school principals.

Joanie suggested calculating the difference between the MS and LLE principal and then provide
Jason with the difference.

Jerry suggested that he and Melissa work on a proposal and then email it out to us before taking it
to the Board.

Melissa would like to make it clear that the goal is not to stay at 88% - she would like to see this
number increase each year.

Barb clarified that we would never be where we want to be with this model.

Team agreed and decided to meet again to target a specific salary.

Jerry suggested making two proposals to the board - one for the nonmonetary items and another
motion for a monetary recommendation.

Do we want to connect to the RV averages? If so, provide a ranking of each position within their
district.

Averages will always be skewed due to experience of other comps.

Actionltems® . o . . .l Person. | Deadline
Proposal to the Board to recommend a 1.5% increase and .

. ' Jerry, Melissa
nonmonetary items
Melissa to come up with some options Melissa

Discuss Melissa’s new salary structures

Next meeting: February 6,2017, at 1:30 Kelly (Jerry to remind)

Approved:

Page 2 of 2




Wegner CPAs

December 10, 2016

To the Board of Education
Evansville Community School District
Evansville, Wisconsin

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Evansville Community School District for the
year ended June 30, 2016. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, OMB’s
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and
the State Single Audit Guidelines, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of
our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 6, 2016. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Evansville Community School District are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by Evansville Community School District
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the school district's financial statements were:

Management's estimate of the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability is based on the unit
credit actuarial cost method. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
OPEB liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole. :

Management’s estimate of the net pension liability is based on the unit credit actuarial cost method
as determined by Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS). We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the net pension liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation
to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the depreciable lives of property and equipment is based on the actual
cost or estimated historical costs, based on inventories conducted by an independent third party.
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate of the depreciable
lives of property and equipment in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

-3 6uidiu@ you. Beyond the numbers.™

Janesville Office: Baraboo Office: Milwaukee Office: Madison Office: www.wegnercpas.com
101 E. Milwaukee Street 123 Second Street W229N1433 Westwood Drive 2110 Luann Lane info@wegnercpas.com
Suite 425 P.O. Box 150 Suite 105 Madisan, Wi 53713 (888) 204-7665

Janesville, Wi 53545 Baraboo, WI 53913 Waukesha, Wil 53186 P: (608) 274-4020
P: (608) 756-4020 P: (608) 356-3966 P: (262) 522-7555 F: (608) 274-0775
F: (608) 356-2966 F: (262) 522-7550 _



The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or
the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our
audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 10, 2016. Aftached is a copy of management's written
representations.

Management Consultationé with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
‘of an accounting principle to Evansville Community School District’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Evansville Community School District's
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), Budgetary
Comparison Schedule, Schedule of Funding Progress for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension, Schedule of Employer Contributions, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability, and Schedule
of Funding Progress for Pension Plans, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management'’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on- Combining Balance Sheet - General Fund, Combining Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund, Combining Balance Sheet -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds, Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Nonmajor Government Funds, Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds,
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, which accompany the financial statements
but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management
and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information
complies with the requirements of OMB’s Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit



Requirements for Federal Awards, the State Single Audit Guidelines, and accounting principies generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period,
and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We
compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the board of education and management of Evansville
Community School District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Sincerely,
Wegner CPAs, LLP

(Jepis—

Scott R. Haumersen, CPA
Partner



Evansville

Community School District

_ Steve Swanson

340 Fair Street Business Manager

Evansville, WI, 53536 swansons@evansville k12 wi.us
Phone: (608) 882-5224

Fax: (608) 882-6564 Jessie Backes

Business Services Assistant

backesj@evansville k12.wi.us

November 10, 2016

To Wegner CPAs, LLP -

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
Evansville Community School District, which comprise the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of
expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. ltems are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered
material as a result of qualitative factors. ‘

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of November 10, 20186, the following
representations made {o you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated April
25, 2016, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary information in
accordance with the applicable criteria.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and
include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and all
component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial
reporting entity.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable.

6. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.



10.

Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
financial statements or in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been posted
to the accounts.

The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted
for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the School District is contingently liable, if any, have
been properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters, and
all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the School District from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of Board of Education or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and afe reflected in the financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the School District and involves:
¢ Management, |

* Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

e Others where'the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the School District's
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered when
preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the School District’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.



Government—specific

10.

20.

21,

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that you have reported to us.

We have a process to frack the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to
the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as our
planned corrective actions, for the report.

The School District has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, liabilities, or equity.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulétions, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred,
of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we believe have a material
effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, and any other
instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to have
occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to
the audit objectives.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred,
of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively materlal to the financial statements or otherfi nanmal
data significant to the audit objectives.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on
noncompliance. :

As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates
to those nonattest/nonaudit services, including that we assume all management responsibilities;
oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who
possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services
performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, approved, and
accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related notes and schedule of expenditures
of federal and state awards.

Except as made known to you, the School District has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there
are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.
39.

40.

The School District has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest,
and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 34.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are partncularly
important to financial statement users.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and
classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restncted committed, assigned, and unassigned) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly
valued.

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been propérly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to tunctions and programs in the statement
of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general

" revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

principal.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are
properly disclosed.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capltahzed reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated.

We have appropriately disclosed the School District’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized under
the policy.

We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more
than one resource classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications for
financial reporting purposes.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any

- significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI.



47. With respect fo federal and state award programs:

a.

We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
and the Stafe Single Audit Guidelines, including requirements relating to preparation of the
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards.

We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of federal and state
awards (SEFSA) and related notes in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance
and the State Single Audit Guidelines, and we believe the SEFSA, including its form and content,
is fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Guidelines.
The methods of measurement or presentation of the SEFSA have not changed from those used in
the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations
underlying the measurement or presentation of the SEFSA.

If the SEFSA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited
financial statements readily available fo the intended users of the SEFSA no later than the date we
issue the SEFSA and the auditor’s report thereon.

We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related activities
subject to the Uniform Guidance and the Stafe Single Audit Guidelines compliance audit, and have
included in the SEFSA, expenditures made during the audit period for all awards provided by
federal and state agencies in the form of federal and state awards, federal and state cost-
reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated surplus property),
cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct appropriations,
and other direct assistance.

We are responsible for understanding and complying with the requirements of federal and state
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal and state awards related to each of
our federal and state programs and have identified and disclosed to you the requirements of federal
and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal and state awards that are
considered to have a direct and material effect on each major federal and major state program.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained,
effective internal control over compliance for federal and state programs that provides reasonable
assurance that we are managing our federal and state awards in compliance with laws, regulations,
and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements that could have a material effect on our
federal and state programs. We believe the internal control system is adequate and is functioning
as intended.

We have made available to you all federal and state awards (including amendments, if any) and
any other correspondence with federal and state agencies or pass-through entities relevant to
federal and state programs and related activities.

We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs as a
major program. '

We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements (except for noncompliance
disclosed to you), including, when applicable, those set forth in the OMB Compliance Supplement
and the appendices to the State Single Audit Guidelines, relating to federal and state awards and
confirm that there were no amounts questioned and no known noncompliance with the direct and
material compliance requirements of federal and state awards.

We have disclosed any communications from federal and state awarding agencies and pass-
through entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance



requirements, including communications received from the end of the period‘covered by the
compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

We have disclosed to. you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for previous
audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the
objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from
the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in
OMB's Uniform Guidance (2 CFR part 200, subpart E) and OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for
State, Local, and Tribal Governments, if applicable, and the appendices to the State Single Audit
Guidelines.

. We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance’ requirements that may have varying
interpretations.

We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct and material
compliance requirements, including information related to federal and state program financial
reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence
about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period affecting noncompliance during the
reporting period. .

There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance
requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditor’s report.

No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance, subsequent to
the period covered by the auditor’s report.

Federal and state program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are
supported by the books and records from which the basic financial statements have been prepared.

The copies of federal and state program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal or state agency or pass-through
entity, as applicable.

We have charged costs to federal and state awards in accordance with applicable cost principles.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit findings
to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit
Guidelines, and we have provided you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior
audit findings by federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all
management decisions.

We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain protected
persecnally identifiable information.

. We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data Collection
Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.

We are responsible for taking corrective action on each audit finding of the compliancé audit and
‘have developed a corrective action plan that meets the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and
the State Single Audit Guidelines.



48. In regard to the bookkeeping services performed by you, we have—

¢ Assumed all management responsibilities.

» Designated an individual (within senior management) with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience
to oversee the services.

» Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

o Accepted responsibility for the results of the services.

We have carefully read this letter before signing it and understand, while you have provided the language
of this letter to us, we are making these representations to you. We understand our obligation to carefully
consider the possibility that any of the representations are not accurate. We have inquired of other members
of management or employees of Evansville Community School District to the extent necessary to obtain a

high degree of assurance that these representations are true. We know that you will be relying on them in
the issuance of your report.

District Administrator

et

7
il ! P A 4
> ?"L(...,__.._.é(,). r\ilf,%’y/w [ ——
e
Steve Swanson
Business Manager




343.3 Rule
Revised: March 9, 2016
Reviewed: September 14, 2016

Revised:
1%t Reading: 12/15/16; 2" Reading: 1/11/17; 3¢ Reading: 1/25/17

ONLINE LEARNING/VIRTUAL SCHOOL PROGRAM — ADMINISTRATIVE RULE

The Evansville Community School District participates as a member of the JEDI Virtual School
consortium. JEDI is a public charter school that provides educational services to families whose
students are seeking an educational option in the form of online coursework.

Online course options through JEDI include single course offerings or full-time enrollment in the
virtual school.

I.  JEDI Single Course Option:
A. Course Enrollment Approval:
The following criteria may be used to determine if students are permitted to enroll in
virtual school online courses:
1. The course is not offered face-to-face by the District.
2. In rare cases, although the course is offered by the District, the student is unable to
take the course due to an unavoidable scheduling conflict or special circumstance.
3. The course is needed to meet an individual education plan, a differentiated
education plan, a 504 plan, or a plan to remediate credits for graduation.
4. The student is considered a qualified candidate according to the following criteria:
a) Course availability.
b) Seats open in available courses.
¢) Course prerequisites are met.
d) Past successful academic record in online courses.
e) Past academic record in traditional courses.
f) Teacher recommendation.
g) Parent recommendation.
h) Student interview.
i) Other valid indicators deemed necessary by the District.
5. Approval by the principal.

B. Enrollment Procedures:
The following procedures and guidelines apply to students enrolled full-time in the
District:

1. Students and parents/guardians shall discuss JEDI single course options with a
school counselor and the District JEDI coordinator. The District JEDI coordinator
shall review a syllabus and expected course pacing for each class of interest to
determine the best options for the student and report to the counselor and the family
regarding their findings.

2. Students shall indicate their intention to enroll in JEDI single courses during the
normal course scheduling process for the following academic year. The District
JEDI coordinator shall provide registration materials to families indicating JEDI
single course options with detailed instructions for when they are due.

3. Not less than two weeks prior to the beginning of the term for which the student
wishes to enroll in the class, the student and parent shall complete the JEDI single

Evansville Community School District Policy 343.3 Rule Page 1 of 2



course registration form and submit it to the counseling office with-the-tuition
payment.

4. Students who have submitted applications and tuition payments in the designated
timeline shall have access to the JEDI class platform by day one of the term
enrolled.

5. Enrollment in virtual school online courses at other times of the year due to
individual circumstances such as illness or expulsion will be decided on a case by
case basis.

6. Student may enroll in up to two online courses per year.

C. A decision denying a request for a virtual school full-time or single course enrollment
may be appealed to the District Administrator.

II. JEDI Virtual School Full-Time Option:

Students wishing to enroll full-time in the JEDI virtual school program as an alternative to

traditional programming may request a meeting with parents, counselor, and a JEDI District

Coordinator. School officials will then meet to determine the best placement of the student.

A. Full-time virtual school students must complete all Evansville High School Graduation
Requirements in order to receive a diploma from Evansville High School.

B. Full-time virtual school students may request to rent a laptop provided by the District
for a fee of $50 annually

III. Virtual School and Online Course Policies and Procedures:

A. Wisconsin Statues for attendance apply.

B. Acceptable internet and technology use policies, and all other applicable District policies

apply.

C. Students will be held accountable to the policies and procedures outlined in the JEDI

Virtual School Student and Family Handbook.

D. Grades received for virtual/online course work will count the same as other course
grades. All grades received from virtual/online courses will be recorded on the official
student transcript.

Students are required to participate in state mandated assessments.

Students may participate in extra-curricular activities offered by the District contingent
upon them meeting the conditions of participation.

G. Tuition Cost:

1. Students enrolled in single courses are not responsible for the tuition associated with
the course.

2. Single courses which are taken by student choice for the purpose of student interest,
enrichment opportunity, or to enhance a current course grade (retake the course)
when a comparable course is offered by the school, will be charged the cost of
tuition.

3. Course time extensions to complete the course are set within allowable ranges by
JEDL. Students who exceed the standard time extensions will be responsible for the
additional cost incurred by JEDI.

o m

Local Ref.: Policy #343.3 — Online Learning/Virtual School Program

Evansville Community School District Policy 343.3 Rule Page2 of 2



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Evansville, Wisconsin

The regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Evansville Community School District was
held Wednesday, January 11, 2017, at 6:00 pm in the District Board and Training Center.

The meeting was called to order by President Mason Braunschweig. Roll call was taken.
Members present: Braunschweig, Busse, Rasmussen, Hammann, Oberdorf, Hennig, Spanton
Nelson, and HS Reps Roth and Parker.

APPROVE AGENDA ;
Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Mr. Hennig, moved to approve the agenda
Motion carried, 7-0 (voice vote).

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS/RECOGNITION/UPCOMING EVENTS
e Evansville High School AP District Honor Roll Recipient
e Wisconsin Association of School Board Convention (WASB) January 17-20, 2017
e Open Enrollment — February 6 — April 28, 2017 :

e (Crossing Guard Week - January 16 — January 20, 2017

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS
None.

INFORMATION & DISCUSSION
High School Representatives, Ms. Roth and'Ms Parker presented high school events.

Mr. Braunschweig led dlscusswn on the new hrgh school course proposal, treble/mixed choir.
Discussion. i

Mr. Braunschweig prasentéd sycﬁfﬁc})ol board election candidates.

Mr. Braunschweig led di clu"sfsion‘"’bn the certified staff compensation committee
recommenc,l,a,tio"n. l,E)'isé,ussib.n.

Mr. Braunschwelg Ied discussion of hard to fill positions and asked all to read document from
Wlscons Center for Education Research on Teacher Compensation. Discussion.

Mr. Braunschweig presented the Wisconsin Association of School Boards convention
resolutions. Discussion.

Mr. Braunschweig led discussion on selection of architectural firms for a possible referendum.
Discussion.

Mr. Braunschweig led discussion on sponsorship opportunities with the District. Discussion.

Page 1 of 2



Ms. Hammann presented for a first reading, policies #342-Programs for Students With
Disabilities; #342.1-Local Agency Special Education Program, and #342.11-IDEA Team Process
Summary.

Ms. Hammann presented for a second reading, policy #343.3 Rule-Online Learning/Virtual
School Program, Administrative Rule.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS
None.

BUSINESS (Action Items) -
Motion by Mr. Hennig, seconded by Mr. Busse, moved to accept the resignation‘of, High ‘School
Social Studies Teacher, Robert DeMeuse, effective January 20, 2017. Dlscussron Motlon

carried, 7-0 (voice vote). » S

Motion by Mr. Rasmussen, seconded by Mr. Hennig, moved to h|re L|nd| Zettle Cook 1,ata
rate of $12.50/hour. Motion carried, 7-0 (voice vote). : B, R

Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Mr. Hennig, moved to approve‘.tne“‘new high school course
proposal of treble/mixed choir. Motion carried 7-0 (voic“é"vOte); L

Motion by Mr. Busse, seconded by Mr. Hennig, moved to approve the Certified Staff
Compensation Model and costing as presented by the: Compensatlon Committee. Motion
carried, 6-1 (Hammann)(voice vote). - ‘

Motion by Ms. Oberdorf, seconded by: Mr Busse moved to approve Bray Architects, as the
architectural firm to complete a facrlltles study and work with the District on a possible 2018
referendum. Motion carried, 7 0 (vorce vote)

CONSENT (Action ltems) . - .

Motion by Ms. Spanton.| Nelson seconded by Mr. Busse, moved to approve the consent agenda
items: policies, #330—Currlculum Development #330 Exhibit-Organization Chart, #331-
Curriculum Documents 1#331 1-K=12 Criteria for Curriculum Development, #333-Student
Privacy, #333. 1(333 2) tudent Surveys, and #334-Curriculum/Instructional Program Evaluation;
December 14 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes; and the December bills, as presented. Motion
carrled 7- O (roII call vote).

FUTURE AGENDA
January 25, 2017, regular meeting agenda discussed.

ADJOURN
Motion by Mr. Hennig, seconded by Mr. Busse, moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried,
7-0 (voice vote). Meeting adjourned at 6:57 pm.

Submitted by Kelly Mosher, Deputy Clerk

Approved: Dated: Approved: 1/25/17
Mason Braunschweig, President

Page 2 of 2



Revised— A 24001 352
Reviewed: September 12, 2005
Revised:  August 10, 2009

Revised:
15 Reading: 1/25/17

SCHOOL SPONSORED EXCURSIONS

The Evansville Community School District Board of Education shall allow field trips and
other school related excursions if such activities are judged to be of value by the principal. All
out-of-school trips must have administrative approval.

Each overnight trip will be considered on its individual merits, but the school board will take into
consideration at least the following in making a decision: (a) the educational purpose and the
sponsor of the event (if any); (b) the number of school days to be missed; (c) the effect of the trip
on other school activities; (d) the financial impact on individual families; () completion of
proper arrangements. Such trips may be approved on a rotating basis to avoid conflicts and to
the greatest extent possible, budgetary limitations for the district and students.

Funding arrangement for each trip must be approved by the building principal. Principals may
approve overnight trips of only one night. Trips involving overnight stays of more than one night
are permissible with principal support and approved by the board, including funding
arrangements. The board should be informed of recurring annual trips after the initial year.

Parent permission slips must be signed in order for students to participate on all out-of-district
school related excursions. All transportation for school-sponsored trips will be in accordance
with state statutes.

The District reserves the right to require students to return home if student conduct warrants such
action. The cost associated with the return to the home demieile will be borne by the student and
the family.

School transportation vehicles will normally be furnished for all school-sponsored excursions.
Public transportation may be requested when deemed advisable by the building principal. All
such travel shall be subject to budgetary limitations. School vehicles may not be used for trips
which are not sponsored and/or financed by the school district. If it is necessary or advisable to
use private motor vehicles to transport students, such vehicles shall be driven by a staff member
or parent/guardian, and insurance and liability rest with the driver and vehicle owner. Students
shall not be permitted to drive vehicles which transport other students.

The District is not responsible for student insurance coverage on school-sponsored excursions.
The District advises all participants to acquire insurance coverage as is appropriate to the
excursion, especially for extended or out-of-country travel. Participants on out-of-country
excursions should adhere to all public health and medical recommendations and requirements.

Teachers and other school personnel shall accompany students on all excursions and shall
assume responsibility for their proper conduct. The teacher or district-sanctioned person in
charge of the group is responsible just as if the activity were conducted at school. Chaperones
should provide close supervision and always be accessible to students. Chaperones are expected

Evansville Community School District Policy 352 Page 1 of 2



to conduct themselves as they would during a normal teaching day. Chaperones will be
required to complete a background check.

Legal Ref.: Sections 118.001 Wisconsin Statutes (Duties and Powers of School Boards)
118.12(2)(a) ( Duties and Powers of School Boards)
118.13 (Pupil Discrimination Prohibited)
120.12(2) (School Board Duties: General Supervision)
120.13(1) (School Board Powers)
121.54(7) (Transportation by School Districts)
895.437 (Use of Lodging Establishments)

Local Ref.: Policy #352.1 — Overnight Excursion Regulations
Policy - #352.2 — Planning and Supervision of School Trips
Policy #352.1 Form — Overnight Excursion-Parent/Guardian Permission

Evansille Community School District Policy 352 PageZ of2



Approved: February 10, 1992 352.1
Revised: May 14, 2001

Revised:
1% Reading: 1/25/17

10.

OVERNIGHT EXCURSION REGULATIONS

. Excessive noise, disruptive or harassing behavior or any other gress serious misbehavior may

result in the student or group being sent home at the expense of the parents/ ex-guardians.
The decision shall be made by the school official in charge of the trip.

The presence of drugs and alcohol on or about a student is ebselutely prohibited. If any
student is found to be in possession of or using illegal drugs, said student shall be sent home
immediately at the expense of his/her parents/ ex guardians. There shall be no drinking of
alcohol or entering taverns or bars during the entire trip. Any student who uses or is found to
possess liguer alcohol, tobacco/nicotine or other drugs on the trip may be sent home en-the

first-available-train;-plane-or-bus-out; after the parents/ er-guardians have been notified. The

expense incurred by such action will be paid by the student and his/her parents/-ex guardians.

. Bag inspection may be held at any time by the chaperones.

Smoking/vaping/electronic cigarettes or any other use of tobacco products is prohibited at
any time.

No student is to leave the housing accommodations hetel-ormeter inn after dark, unless
accompanied by a chaperone.

No student is to leave his/her room after bed check in the evening.
All students will participate in all tours and other group activities.
For the safety of each student, parents/guardians will be expected to notify the school of any

physical limitation or restriction their child may have which school officials should be aware
(i.e., diabetes, fainting spells, epilepsy, etc.).

If any student is found guilty of any misdemeanor or criminal act while on the class trip, the
responsibility of paying any fine will be borne by the student/parents and those
parents/guardians will be responsible for providing transportation home.

12.

Each participating student must sign an agreement to abide by all rules and regulations, and
his/her parent/guardian must give written permission for the student to go on the class trip.

Local Ref.: Policy #352 — School Sponsored Excursions

Policy #352.1 Form — Overnight Excursions-Parent/Guardian Permission
Policy #352.2 — Planning and Supervision of School Trips

Evansville Community School District Policy 352.1 Page 1 of 1



Approved: May 14, 2001 352.1 Form
Revised:
1% Reading: 1/25/17

OVERNIGHT EXCURSION — PARENT/GUARDIAN PERMISSION

Destination: Date(s) of trip:

Student’s Name:

Address:

Parent/Guardian Name:

Phone;

Alternate Contact Person:

Phone:

Physician:

Phone:

1. If emergency medical attention is necessary, I agree to have my student sen/daughter
taken to the nearest medical facility and to have medical attention rendered as deemed
necessary by the attending physician.

INSURANCE GROUP & SUBSCRIBER NUMBERS:

2. If your student sen/daughterhas any medical disability, allergies, medication
requirement, etc., please list them below. PLEASE BE COMPLETE AND SPECIFIC:

3. My student senfdaughter-does , does not , have any permission to
swim on this trip. NOTE: Supervision of the pool area may not be provided.

4. Any other restrictions? Explain.

5. Thave read the financial arrangements, the itinerary and guidelines for rules of conduct
for this trip and do hereby give my consent for the student named to participate on this
trip.

Parent/Guardian Signature Date

Evansville Community School District Policy 352.1 Form Page 1 of 1



Revised:- November 142005 35232
Revised: February 11, 2008
Revised: September 14, 2009

Revised:
1%t Reading: 1/25/17

PLANNING AND SUPERVISION OF SCHOOL TRIPS

A sponsoring teacher shall request a field trip by completing a “Field Trip Request Form” and
submitting it to the building principal. The form should be completed welt a minimum of one
week in advance of the actual trip. All field trips will be approved or disapproved, in writing, by
the principal. Parental approval must be obtained before a student is allowed to participate in a
field trip. A list of students participating in a field trip will be provided to the school office and
all chaperones. Students may be assessed a fee to cover field trip costs. but-care-should be-taken-

to-keep-eests-to-a-minimum.

Adequate adult supervision must be provided for each field trip. The number of chaperones and
their duties will vary depending upon the nature of the field trip and the grade level of the
students. Volunteer chaperone duties will be determined by the teacher prior to the principal’s
final review and approval of the trip.

Staff trained to deal with the health needs of students on the trip should be included as
chaperones. The health or medical needs eeneerntist should be reviewed at least one week prior
to departure and the school nurse consulted to deal with health needs in time to develop
contingency plans.

The staff member in charge, and other school personnel who assist, shall be responsible for
knowing the trip site in relationship to any unusual hazards, safety conditions and/or special
facilities. The staff member in charge is responsible for chaperones knowing their
responsibilities. They should also:
1. Know and enforce all rules and regulations related to the place or site to be visited, as
well as the school rules.
2. Discuss standards for vehicle safety, conduct and courtesy with all students prior to the
trip.
3. Make it clearly understood that no discourtesy, disobedience or defiant behavior will
be tolerated. '
4. Caution students to respect the property and rights of others.

6. Provide a statement of expectations and responsibilities for chaperones and a list of
students in their charge.

7. Staff member in charge will have at least one first aid kit and list of student’s health
related needs concernsavailable. ‘

S O S
S O R R R R R R R R R R ———————

Evansville Community School District Policy 352.3 Page 1 of 2



10. Chaperones on duty should be easily identified by students with a name tag or other
identifier.

11. For overnight excursions, the staff member in-charge must have copies of medication
forms and a plan in place for dispensing medications.

All staff and volunteer chaperones will abide by the following guidelines:

a. Chaperones are directly responsible to the staff member in charge of the scheduled
activity.

b. Chaperones will assume only those responsibilities as designated by the staff member
in-charge.

c. Chaperones will ride to and from the area of destination with the students in the same
means of transportation provided for the students.

d. Chaperones will have a list of students and emergency phone numbers available to
them.

e. Chaperones will abstain from use of alcohol, controlled substances or

tobacco/vaping/electronic cigarettes during the-time-they-areresponsible-for-
supervision-of the-students;-which-isfor the duration of the trip.

f. Chaperones will follow procedures outlined by the staff member in charge in cases of
emergency.

Legal Ref.: Sections 118.001 Wisconsin Statutes (Duties and Powers of School Boards)
118.12(2)(a) ( Duties and Powers of School Boards)

118.13 (Pupil Discrimination Prohibited)

120.12(2) (School Board Duties: General Supervision)

120.13(1) (School Board Powers)

121.54(7) (Transportation by School Districts)

895.437 (Use of Lodging Establishments)

Local Ref.: Policy #352 — School Sponsored Excursions

Policy #352.1 — Overnight Excursion Regulations
Policy #352.1 Form — Overnight Excursion-Parent/Guardian Permission

Evansville Community School District Policy 352.3 Page 2 of 2



Revised: December, 2013 342
Revised: February 12,2014

Revised:

1%t Reading: 1/11/17; 2" Reading: 1/25/17

PROGRAMS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

The Evansville Community School District Board of Education is committed to providing a free
and appropriate education to all students, including student with a special education disability,
within its jurisdiction in accordance with pertinent state and federal laws and is committed to
providing a meaningful educational experience for all students, including students with
disabilities. All students with disabilities ages 3-21 shall receive special education programming
and related services to meet their individual needs.

The Board recognizes that special education programs and services are part of the total education
program in the District and not a separate entity. The Board also recognizes the legal requirement
that students with disabilities be educated in the least restrictive environment as appropriate to
their individual needs. The District will provide appropriate special education and related
services to all students with special education disabilities in accordance with federal and state
laws and compliance requirements.

Specific educational programs and services for students with disabilities shall be determined by
the student’s individualized education program (IEP) team and be based on an assessment of the
student’s individual needs. Students with disabilities shall participate in academic assessments
required by law and the District, with or without accommodations, or in alternate assessments as
outlined in the student’s IEP.

The District shall appoint the Director of Student Services to act on behalf of the Board of
Education on all initial referrals of students with disabilities. The Director of Student Services or
program designee shall assign an IEP team with expertise in assessing and developing services
and programs for students with disabilities. All District special education programs and
placement of District students with special education disabilities are under the direction and
supervision of the Director of Student Services.

Within the parameters of state and federal laws governing the operation of programs for students
with disabilities, there are due process safeguards for parent rights and appeal. The District’s
procedural safeguards notice is based on a model developed by the United States Department of
Education with adaptations made by the Wisconsin Department of Instruction for use by
Wisconsin school districts and other local education agencies. The District shall adhere to all
such provisions. The notice, titled Special Education Procedural Safeguards: Rights for Parents
and Children, is available through the office of the Director of Student Services.

Legal Ref.: Chapter 115, Subchapter V Wisconsin Statutes

Sections 118.13 (Pupil Discrimination Prohibited)
118.30 (Pupil Assessment)
121.54(3) (Transportation by School Districts)

PI 11, Wisconsin Administrative Code

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Americans with Disabilities Act

ESSA 2015

Evansville Community School District Policy 342 Page 1 of 1



Approved: March 20, 2000 342.1
Revised:  August 11, 2003
Revised: May 12, 2008

1%t Reading: 1/11/17; 2* Reading: 1/25/17

For Removal as is Incorporated into Proposed #342.

LOCAL AGENCY SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM

The Board of Education is committed to providing a free and appropriate education to all school-
age students with a special education disability within its jurisdiction in accordance with
pertinent state and federal laws.

The District recognizes special education services are a part of the student’s total educational
program in the District and not a separate entity. The District also recognizes the legal
requirement of educating students with special education disabilities in the least restrictive
environment.

The District shall provide appropriate special education services to all students identified with
special education disabilities in compliance with the Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction
(DPI) Model Local Educational Agency Special Education Policies and Procedures (revised:
November 2007).

All District special education programs and placement of District students with special education
disabilities are under the direction and supervision of the Director of Student Services. Copies of
the District adopted DPI Model Local Educational Agency Special Education Policies and
Procedures are available through the office of the Director of Student Services.

Legal Ref.: Chapter 115, subch. V, Wisconsin Statutes
Sections 118.13 , 118.30,118.51, 118.52,121.54(3),121.78(3)
PI 11 Wisconsin Administrative Code
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (as amended)
American With Disabilities Act of 1990
Section 504
Rehabilitation Act of 19973
No Child Left Behind Act 0f 2001



‘pIIyo 1jeuaq B ey
$191J0 10 g T .5q PaJaljo SAJIAIAS AUB PUB SPaall [BUOIEINPa
AJ1USp! “)[IGESIP B )i P[IYD B JOU S P[IYd paululialap J

vl
wea |, 441

"Hodal uonenjeAs pue s3ulipuyy
Jo sonjou uaA1f sjuared ‘Apjiqesip e
Ui P[IY0 JOU ST P[IYd pAUTULIAldp Jf

G-y U0 pue "papaau
s ¢-] ygnoayy -] suuo
SHIQESIP B Y3 Py

¥ aq 0} Jou punoy pryd

“A31[1q181]2 JO UOLRUIULIS}OP
JUSWINOOP *SJ1[IqESIP B YA PIIYD € ST PJIyd pauluLialop J

vdl

wes ], Jd]

"dA1 oy Surdojeasp a10§9q awny
[euonippe 1o podar a3 jo idoo e
ay1] pjnos Ao J1 syuedioned wesy
dA1 sy "Hodal uorjenjeas aredalq

papaau
se /-] Ygnodyy -] suuoy

Appiqesip B yiia
PIIYd ® 3q 03 punaj piiyy

"S901AIS pajefal
pue uoreonpa [eroads spasu (G)9, ¢ [ Ul pajst| jusuiedu
AUR JO UOSEAI AQ OUA\ P[IYD B SUBSW  AJI[IGESIP B YN PIIYD),,

sonjou Surgeaw sapraoid vy
wes |, dd1

uoneuiuLelep ut syediored sjuaie
‘uoryeonpa [eroads 10y A1qISIe
SOUIULI2)P PUB S}O3W Wed) |

%, 6°Y WO

“(‘8d suo uey) 10w ou ‘s[esausd) Joq aq
Lreununs oy Jey pue ‘sjynsal juatussasse ay} Jo suonearjduwr
[BUOI}BINP3 Jf} OpNjoul AIBWIWNS Y] JRYy) Si Juaju]

S[BLISJBU ‘[RAS IS0 10 5159}
‘SJUSLUSSOSSE [LUOI)IPPE JONPUOD
oy syedioied wesy 7|

‘Guiuueyd weioad
U3\ ISISSE [[1M JRY) sSuipuy
Jo srewwns juedioiied aiedaly

S[ELI2}ELU UOIJBN[BAD
Iayjo pue §359) Juuglsiunupe aq
[ oyss syuediorued weaf, J4q1

"papaau 2q ABW SE S|BLIdJRW
UOIBN[BAD JAYJO 29 S159) Io)SIUIUPY

‘Teuondo Sunsaw wes} JHq]|

"UMOLY J1 SOWIBU JI2Y] 29 ‘UOIIBN[BAS SY] JONPUOD

[[1s% Ot SJENPIAIPUI JO SUOIEdIenb ‘paislsiunupe aq

0} SjelLIaJBW UOIJBN|BAS IAU}0 PUR §}S3) ‘PajBN[BAS 3q O] Seale
Jo paynjou sjuared ‘papasu BIep [BUONIPPE J| 'UOIBUILLISIGP
Jo paynou ale pue uoisoap ul ajedionied sjuared

aanjou sapiaold v
“(ueTd:uotieonpy
POZTTEBNPEATPUI) wed] Jd]

“UOIJBUILLIAISP JO PSIJIIOU Sjualeq
‘papaaul BJep [BUOHIPPE JI SUIULID)OP
‘juared oy} WO UOIBWLIONUI
Surpnjoul ‘eyep SuiIsIxa AJ1uap]

6-Y wio]
(papsau se) [-] ULIOY]

(iep [ruonIppe) H-y WIO]
(mpep [BUOLIPPE OU) -y ULIO,]

" _:v_u; Fuijoaul ji)

“umowy 31 soureu pue sjuedronted urea) g1 Jo suoneoyienb
sapnjour ao130N “ojerrdordde se [ouuosiad sa01AI0S paje[al
Suipnjour pjiyo a1y} In0qe asipadxe [eroads 1o a8psjasouy saey
oyas s1a130 ‘ojerdordde saasuayss ppiyo oy} H(240qe 21} JO U0
aq AeW) S} NSa1 UOIIBN]RAS U]} JoIdIajul UBD OYsL [BNPIAIPUL
‘aanpejuasardar yq 1 (pJiyo oy jo Jopraoid pa jeroads
‘ajeudoadde arayas 10) 1oyoea) pa [eroads | 1se9] 1B pPIYo Ay}
JO Iayoea) 'pa Je[ngal | ises] Je ‘syualed :sopnjour wea) JH|

(Louely
UOTIBONPE TEI0T) YH7]

‘splengajes jeinpaoold

U9AIZ ‘UOIJBN|BAD 10J JUSSUOD 2AIT
0] payse ‘wred} 441 Jo usunuiodde
PUB [€119J31 JO paljljou sjuoled

TV uuog

NOILVNTVAY
TVILINI

"PAAI0AI USYA\ [119]1 SIIBP PUR SIUSWUNIOP
VAT “AN[IGESIP B YA PIIYD € ST PJIYR DY Jey SaAalfaq
uosiad a1} AyYs SUOSEDI Jif} PUB P{IYS al|} JO WU aLf} apnjoul

ANJIQESIP € YIS Py ®
S1 PJIYD B 9A21[0q {[qeUOSEa] 53]
J1RIIQJOI B ORI ISNW £/ / G|
10pUN [2110§31 B oxewW 0} paiinbal

‘[edIajal ay) umnuqns

910J0Qq apBW 2q 0} FUL0F Si [elId)ol
' jey) Juaied s_pJiyo o) wojul
LLL €] 40opun [elIdjol B oyl 0)

(suonen|eadal
Joj ruondo) [~y WI0

1ShW pUR (SUBSW JAY10 10 [-V) Burjiis Ul oq ISNUU [e1IJay | SIAYI0 pue [ouuosiad [00yds Auy | palinbai s19110 29 [puuosiad (001§ IVWAFTATY
. SINIIWINOD HATAISNOdSHY SI OHM HNOA SI LVHM SIWYOABISVYL
— Ve~ %mgbm mmﬁUOMA EANAHH (1o uonednp sANIIqESI YA sfenpIAIpuy) vadl €0-11-8 :poaoxddy

e /= C.,c%h.NM\ pPuz / N\\\\\\\ ; H\\\\&m%\ s/




86/97/8 -INOPUBH AJBWILUNG §592044 Wea ], 41

"PIIYD 2yl HJauaq ABUI JeL])
swiei3oid .Jruapl pue spasu [BUOIIEDNP? AJIUSPI “A)[IGESIP
B LI\ PJIYD B 3q 0} 9NUIIIOD JOU S0P P[IYD pauluLialap J|

V'l

wea} J49qi

‘podal uoljen[eAs
aY} pue s3ujpulj JO 301J0U dA1303l
syuased "podar uoijenjeaa aiedaly

¢~y ULOy pue ‘pspasu
se g-] ySnoayy [-] suLo,]
SHITQESIP & s plga
© 3¢ 0) Jou punoy ppyd ji

"AN[1q1S1]2 JO UOIJBUIULIZJOP JUAWINOOP ‘AH[IGESIP
€ U)1As P[ILD B 24 0} S9NUIIU0D PJIYo T8y} Paullialap J]

vl

weaj, JHlI

"dd1 a3 SurdojaAsp aiojoq awn
Jeuonippe 1o podai ayy Jo sdoo e
41| pinoay Aayy J1 syuedionred weoj
dAI sy wodal uonenjeas aredoly

‘popaau

se /-] ydnony [-] suuoq
AH1qesip B s

PIIYD € 2q 0} punoj piiy)

"S901AIAS paje|al puB
uotjeanpa |eroads spaau ()9 ¢ ul paisi| juauuedwr sue

sonj0u dunsaw sapiaoid YT

"SPasu [BUOIJIPPE 10 UOIBONP?
Jeroads 1oy A3[1q181a Suiunuod

JO uosual £q oy piyod ® sueaw  SHIqesIp By Py, wes ] J9] SOUIULI2)AP PUE S}9aWl Wea | dq] 4,67V ULO]

(38ed ouo uey) a1ow ou A][essuad) | S[ELSEL UOIIEN|BAS IOLJ0 IO ‘S}5a) guiuue)d weiford

Jo11q 9q IBLUWINS JeU} PUE “PajoIIpuoD UOITEN|BAD JAL[}0 ‘SJUILUSSASSE [BUOI)IPPE JONPUOD IIALISISSE ]I Jey) sBulpuly

PUE 553} JO SUOIjROI|dWl |BUOIJBONPS 9ZIIBUIWINS O} SI jUaju] oy sjuedioried wesy gqi Jo srewwns juedrorped aredaiy

S{BIIJBUI UOIIEN[BAQ
19130 pue 5159} FuLISISIUTUIPE 9q papaau SE S[BIIS)ELL UOIEN[BAD
[Ny oy syuedionaed wes ], 4] 13410 puE $153} 19)SIUIUPY
"UASOUD] JT “SSUiBU 1131} pUB ‘UOIJEN[BAR alf)

1ONpUOY [[1A\ OYAS S|BAPIAIPUL JO SUOIjBINI[END ‘palajsiunupe ‘Pa3onpuod

24 0] s|eLI3]RW UOIJEN|BAS IS|]0 PUE §]$3) ‘Pajen[BAD VAT | 29 0} pasu s[eLIjel! uonen|eA 1ayjo 8-y Ulo4q

9q 0] seale JO payyiiou sjualed ‘papaau BIEp [RUOIIPPE J]

10 §)§9) [RUONIPPE JI JUASUOD UIRIqQ(Q)

‘reuondo Gunoow wesy Jq

"UALOLDY T ‘SSWBU 113} PUB ‘UOIJBN|BAD 3T[} JONPUOD

[[1A% OUA\ S[BNPIAIPUI JO SUOIROIyI[END ‘PalajSIUTWPE 9q 0}
S[BLISJEW UOIJBN|[BAS I3Y]O PUB $)S3) ‘PAJBN[BAD 9q O} SBAIE
JO panyiou sjusied ‘papasu BjEp [BUOHIPPE J| UOIBUILLISIOP

aonjou sapraotd v

"UOIBUIULIAJAP JO PALIjou Sjuaied
"Papasu BJEP [BUOIIPPE JI SUIULIDJAP
pue (juaied sy} WoI} UOIFBULIOJUL

*_::u: Bunastu Ji) g-y wio ]
(papasu se) -] ULO,]
(popoau Bep [rUOLIPPR) -V

Jo paijnjou a1e pue uoisioap ur sjedioiped sjuaieq weay Jd9] Surpnjour) eyep Sunsixe .gruap] | “(wiep [RUOIPPR o) /-y W10,
"USAIS SPIBNFJES [BINPad01
"SI 93111 .{19A2 90UO JSEI] 18 Jnq ‘sysenbal isyoes) ‘wea) J41 Jo uaunutodde pue 9~V ULO ]
10 yared Gueiiea SUOIJIPUOD UDLAY S1NDD0 UOIIEN[RAJTY Y7 | @enjeaaal 01 juajul o sjuased \J1joN NOILYNTVALTY
SINIWWOD (0MM\ 6LYHM SWHOIAMSYL




(u[g uonEONPE PaZI[ENPIAIPUT) JHT

86/97/8 -1nopugH Alvwwing ss20014 Wea], 9]

(AousBy uoneonpy [8007) VEI

6V w0 [d@) 'Guneaw ayl 0 pIyo J1ay) jnoqe asipiadya [eioads 1o aFpajsouy aary
oy adoad satpjo Buriq 03 JyBii sy saky spudled "UOLBOO] pue awiy ‘ajep © Junesw wesy g sy Jo ssodind ay) sepnjout 20130\ "ade|d pue awi)
3[quaaide sjjeninu e Je pjay st Supjeaui oy | “Fuzeswu ayj 03 Jourd Suniia ul payjou aq jsnus sjuased ‘Fuiesill Wes) g5 UE 1 219Y)) JTSASUDAN (SSun@’A wea ] JH]«

108 Op 03 2]q1SEa 10U A[183[D 31 11 ssajun ‘aFengue| aAnjeu sjuared oy ul pue o1fqnd [ereusd ayj .iq pooisiapun i[Ises aq uEd 31 OS UaP LA
Z6LC11 Yita aoueploooe ul prengajes [einpasold jo uoneue|dxa [[nf B Sapnjour 810U UAYLIA 3] *(6-y ULIO,[) Sunesw wesy gg] ue o
HOHEAUL AUR YJIAL PUE “(9-V/ LLHO,]) UOHEN[EA3DI JO 300U YA *(7- WOl,]) uonen[eA [eniur uodn juas si 0MON SpiENGajeg [LINPadold Y SPAEngajes [Inpadoa

‘SHLON

Y7 PUe Suip[ing [00YdS SIPN]OUT JUSWIAOE[]

VAl

wes] ddI

ER N ENERERET

At papraoad dqj jo sdop
‘Juswaoe|d

SuInunuod 0y 9d1j0u [BNULY
‘pe3sanbau

Apeaije jou J1 syuated 03 uaa13 podal
© uonen[eAs jo idon "Juaweoeld
[enjiur 10§ pasinbai juasuon)

"dq1 wewa]dun

O} SpeW UOISIOaP JUAIDE|

L1-] PUB 9[- UUO4
LINHWHOV I

$1030€j [B10ads JO UOI}RISPISUOD
‘Auofew o age Je s3ySis Jo soysuey) isjuared o) pauodar

PUE painseal aq [[1as $]20T [enuue pieswo) ssaidoid asoy

‘9 put {1 safe 10j UOT}ISUBL] SJUSLLSSISSE SPIAVIOLIISIP
pue apravare)s ur uonedionyed (siaad pajqesipuou

qis ajedronied Jou [J1s Iy st YOIy 0 JUSIX JO
uoneue[dxe isao1atas pue spie ejuswajddns pue ‘sa01AIRS
paiejal “"pa [eroads Jo uonelnp ‘uoijeoo] ‘{ouanbaij

‘sajep pajosfold isaanoalqo uusy-poys Jo sysewYdUaq

‘[oul s|eod jenutre ‘sourwiiogied Jo sjoas| juasasd sapnjou]

wea ], 491

"dd] sdojaaap wrey 4q]

‘popasu
Se C[-] YBnody) g-] SWLIO,
7-1 ulo,

ddl

SLNIWWOD

LOHM

6LYHM

SINJOA4/SYL



991w wod 104 sadueyd pasodoud g Atenuef

at1/Tz/Tt

‘Aing Anf - 7625 # Ad1jod 01 9dualaaJ Aue anoway

SEUENTN[]IE] o)

SO9A Ang Ainr - €0:6 - TO'6 ‘6 UOND3S ‘OF “3d HEIS|IV-T ed JopidsqQ auer| €
‘uuewiwey essiRN
ON spolad Aed - 9|dA) |joJAed - T0°G ‘G UOIIIAS ‘97 "8d HeIS IV - T Med| [In)assoA 8aup ‘ydoy| ¢
aAe( ‘suasiid Ipuey
SOA spouiad Aed - 9]2A] J|oJAed - TO'G ‘S UOIIDS ‘97 “8d HeIS |IV - T Med plemso yiag| T
ON S3A
aled uoldy pieog 928uey) ayewn o1 # UOI3S/uo11as/a8ed gH3 led gH3 Wwi04 Uo dweN #

UOolIE3aPUBWIWIOIDY
wo) gH 29Aojdwi3

DNILIIIN FILLININOD ‘6 AYYNNVT INOYH SIDONVHI a3SOd0dd (gH3) YOOIANVH FFA0TdINT




EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Employee Handbook Committee Minutes

The Employee Handbook Committee meeting was held Monday, January 9, 2017, at 4:30 pm in the
District Board and Training Center.

Attendance
Members in attendance: John Rasmussen, Brian Benson, Melissa Hammann, Michelle Klopp, Jerry
Roth, Steve Scherber, and Mark Schwartz. Absent: Keith Hennig and Catherine Schuett, Others in

attendance: Kelly Mosher.

Appoint Someone to Take the Minutes
Ms. Mosher volunteered to take the minutes.

Approve October 3, 2016, Minutes
minutes, as presented Mot|on carried, voice vote.

Rewew

District Office, and Policy Committee

#1 — Part 1, All Staff, Pg. 26, Section 5, & ycle, Pay Periods and #2 — Part 1, All Staff, Pg.

26, Section 5, 5.01, Payroll Cycle, Pay Periods r. Roth presented these two suggested language
Sreni stween the two. Discussion. Consensus to recommend

S

9,9.01- 9 03 Jury Duty — Ms. Mosher presented suggested

v;"«\

Next Meetmg ate
Reminder that the next meeting will be Monday, March 13, 4:30 pm.

Adjourn
Motion by Mr. Roth, seconded by Mr. Scherber, moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried,
voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 4:51 pm.

Submitted by Kelly Mosher, District Administrative Assistant

Approved: , , Chair Approved:
John Rasmussen




Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Beth A. Oswald

Employee Handbook Part: Section 5, Pay Periods

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Section 5, 5.01 & 5.02, page 26,
Suggested Revision:

Salaried employees should be given the choice of either 20 or 24 pay periods annually, to
be paid bi-monthly on the 10th and 25th of each month (September - June for those
choosing 20 pays, or September - August for those choosing 24 pays).

How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

In the spirit of its Mission Statement, if we want our district to play an"active partnership with families and the
community" we must start with our own employees. Teachers' family budgets and their and economic impact in the
community will likely suffer during the months they do not receive paychecks, As salaried employees teachers
should not have to feel economic hardship by bemg paid only during the school year, yet almost 78% have said that is
the case with only 20 payroll dates. Salaried employee payroll should not be terribly costly to calculate or distribute
through the required direct deposit process, as it is computerized. Additionally, the District Vision Statement calls for
"Highly Effective Staff." Staff will likely be more effective if they are not financially stressed and can focus on what
is important - teaching our students,

*(The 78% of staff mentioned in this section refers the the results of a 2013 survey sent
by the district.)

3k 2k ok ok sk ok ok ok ok %k ok sk ok ok ok sk sk ok ok sk sk ok ok sk ok sk sk sk ok sk skook sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk k sk sk sk k sk ok ok ok

. DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: Q/«Q /oy

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES __ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost /\(b C&—d&:‘lwﬁv 3'{' 1o “Ha, bl%\tﬂ’:d (eacbuw; Do (Mw

%‘6 U(p Ltvw\_ Nnow | LD’L‘u(\./ Jm\H¢MwsL PMJ&:@, @‘\\Mw o
Impact and Amount Hoonn e Mo end c(:ﬂuu.

Legal Impact: Wgom_ /( /guaﬂmm..._

2 LD leapOn

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 5/27/15

2D



Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Employee/School Board Member Name: Mandi Firgens, Dave Kopf, Greg Vossekuil
Employee Handbook Part: Section 5: Pay Periods

Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Page 26 / Section 5

Suggested Revision:

How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

Teachers shall have their wages annualized over 26 pay periods beginning July 1 of each
year and ending June 30 of each year. Teachers will receive pay every other Friday
during the fiscal year.

% ok ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok ok ok ok 3k ok sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk sk ok ok sk ok ok sk sk ok ok sk ok ok ok sk ok sk sk ok ok

DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: _| 2 -2 (D ~\L0 \ i~

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: No &A&‘lﬂ%&u tosst 4o Ho Dishick - wpuld nok Sback ~Hes
Lscal vpar.

Legallmpact Nd\‘u__/‘ N\zu/; 1mmc:€- r‘(—ecu:[u«-; 6*- %medr

{ g
e M Gt a/r‘ % /éb — l ﬁj?
aﬁ HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 5/27/15 ’_//




Section 5 PAY PERIODS 5
Refer to State Statutes 109.03(1)(b) / 9

5.01 Payroll Cycle
A. School Year Employees:
1. Teachers: Teachers shall have their wages annualized oygr 20 or 24 pay periods
beginning September 10 of each year and ending June 3R of each year. Teachers
will receive pay on the 10" and 25™ of each month{eachers-whe-chose-24-pay
periods.will receive six (6) direet-depusits-ofpayinFume-(H0L and 25%) and-four
—(4)additional-days-inJune-to-bedetermimed—

2. Hourly Employees: Hourly employees will be paid bi-monthly on the 10® and
25" of each month.

B. Calendar Year Employees: All employees scheduled to work the calendar year will
be placed on the twenty-four (24) pay period cycle. Pay dates will be the 10" and
25% of each month.

5.02 Payroll Dates
If the payday falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a holiday, employees will be paid on the previous
business day prior to the tenth (10™) or twenty-fifth (25%).

5.03 Direct Deposit Payment Method
The District will pay all employees through direct deposit on each pay date. Employees may
change financial institutions at any time.

5.04 Definitions for Payroll Purp.oses
A day shall run from 12:00 midnight (a.m.) to 11:59 p.m.

5.05 Salary Deferrals —Tax Sheltered Annuities (TSA)

The District will maintain a TSA program without regard to the employee’s current or former
employee’s contribution amounts. Employees shall have the opportunity to participate in the
District’s Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code 403(b) Savings Program and invest their money
through salary deferral in annuities and other qualifying IRS Code 403(b)(7) investment vehicles
(collectively referred to as an “Investment Vehicle”).

Evansville Community School District Employee Handbook Page 26




Appendix A Board Approved: 2/26/14
Revised: 11/12/14
Revised: 5/27/15

EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK PROPOSED CHANGE
Effective Upon Board Approval July 1, Of Each Year

If you have a suggestion for an Employee Handbook change, please work with your employee
group/representative to complete a form for each suggested change. Once the form is
complete, please return to the District Administrator Administrative Assistant in the District
Office, prior to each quarterly Employee Handbook Committee meeting. The Employee
Handbook Committee will review, all suggested changes submitted by employee groups during
each of the first three quarters of the school year, and the Committee Chair will forward
recommendations to the Board of Education. The Board of Education will approve suggested
changes quarterly, with implementation July 1 of each year.

Melissa Hammann/Jane Oberdorf
Employee/School Board Member Name:

Part 1 - All Employees

Employee Handbook Part:

. 30, Section 9, 9.01-Jury Duty-9.03
Employee Handbook Page/Section/Section #: Pg i y

Suggested Revision:
How This Revision Furthers the Mission of the District (stated in policy #152, second paragraph,
last sentence):

See attached sheet -

koK ok koK ok ok stk ok skl skl ok sk sk skoskoskskck sk ok sk sk kokok sk ok sk osk ke sk sk kosk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ko

‘ DISTRICT OFFICE USE ONLY
Form received: /O -4 /)¢ 2p

Board of Education Approval of Change: YES ___ or NO ___; Action Date

Cost Impact and Amount: /\Ime X;/ézmm o

Legal Impact: AJM /~( ZQ,UJL/,M —

HR/handbookapproved/suggested revisions form 5/27/1@



Section 9 - JURY DUTY LEAVE - pg. 30

CURRENT:
9.01 Jury Duty
Refer to Policy 529.2 — Jury Duty Leave

9.02 Employee Notice
An employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor as soon as notice of jury duty is
received. Also the employee is expected to contact his/her supervisor immediately upon
termination of jury duty or when temporarily relieved of jury duty.

9.03 Payment for Time Out on Jury Duty
Refer to Policy 529.2 — Jury Duty Leave

PROPOSED NEW LANGUAGE:

9.01 Jury Duty
Employees shall be granted time off with pay to report for jury duty. Employee must
return to work if not required to be present for jury duty for the entire workday.

9.02 Employee Notice
An employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor as soon as notice of jury duty is
received. Also the employee is expected to contact his/her supervisor immediately upon
termination of jury duty or when temporarily relieved of jury duty.

9.03 Payment for Time Out on Jury Duty
Compensation received for jury duty (exclusive of travel pay or pay for jury duty on non-
school days) shall be turned into the Payroll Department in the District Office.

An employee shall be allowed to appear in court when receiving a subpoena without
loss of pay. This time missed from his/her duties shall be taken from personal business
days or sick leave days if personal business days are not available. If the appearance is
school related, no missed time will be taken from the staff member’s personal business
days or sick leave days.



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Special Meeting/Financial Retreat Agenda
Saturday January 28, 2017
8:00 am
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Note, public notice of this meeting given by posting at the District Office, Levi Leonard Elementary
School Office, Theodore Robinson Intermediate School Office, J.C. McKenna Middle School Office, High
School Office, Evansville School District Web Site: Evansville.k12.wi.us, and by forwarding the agenda to
the Evansville Review, Union Bank & Trust and Eager Free Public Library.

I. Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Melissa Hammann Sandra Spanton Nelson
Eric Busse Jane Oberdorf
John Rasmussen Keith Hennig

il. Information & Discussion:

A.

Architectural Firm Agreement.

B. School Finance Presentation.
C.
D. Budget Development Process Review.

Baird Forecast Model.

1. Review Staff Input Information.

2017-2018 Budget Discussion.

1. Current/New Expenses for 2017-2018.

2. Current/New Revenue Affecting the 2017-2018 Budget.

Ill. Business (Action Item):
A. Approval of Architectural Firm Agreement.
B. Approval of 2017-2018 Open Enrollment Class Limits for General Education.
C. Approval of 2017-2018 Open Enrollment Limits for Special Education.

IV. Adjourn.

This notice may be supplemented with additions to the agenda that come to the attention of the
Board prior to the meeting. A final agenda will be posted and provided to the media no later than
24 hours prior to the meeting or no later than 2 hours prior to the meeting in the event of an
emergency.

Upon reasonable notice, all reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of people
with disabilities through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request
this service, contact the District Office at 340 Fair Street, 882-3387 or 882-3386. Persons needing
more specific information about the agenda items should call 882-3387 or 882-3386 at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Posted:



EVANSVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Education Regular Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, February 8, 2017
6:00 p.m.
District Board and Training Center
340 Fair Street (Door 36)

Note, public notice of this meeting given by posting at the District Office, Levi Leonard Elementary
School Office, Theodore Robinson Intermediate School Office, J.C. McKenna Middle School Office, High
School Office, Evansville School District Web Site: Evansville.k12.wi.us, and by forwarding the agenda to
the Evansville Review, Union Bank & Trust and Eager Free Public Library.

yanton Nelson
Rep Emmeline Roth
Rep Ava Parker

I.  Roll Call: Mason Braunschweig Melissa Hammann
Eric Busse Jane Oberdorf
John Rasmussen Keith Hennig

Il.  Approve Agenda.

lll.  Public Announcements/Recognition/Upcoming Events:
e School Bus Driver Week — February 13 —17, 2017
e Open Enroliment — February 6 — April 28, 201

IV. Public Presentations.

V. Information & Discussion:
A. High School Student Board R:

B.
C.
D

able use and Internet Safety Policy for Students, Staff and Guests.
chnology (Technology Concerns for Students With Special Needs).
4. #375-Activities When School is Cancelled or Not In Session.
5. #723.3-Emergency Closings.
F. Second Reading of Policies:
1. #352-School Sponsored Excursions.
2. #352.1-Overnight Excursion Regulations.
3. #352.1 Form-Overnight Excursion-Parent/Guardian Permission.
4. #352.2 (#352.3)-Planning and Supervision of School Trips.

VI. Public Presentations.

VIIl.  Business (Action Items):
A. Approval of Staff Changes:



VIIl.  Consent (Action Items):
A. Approval of Policies:
1. #342-Programs for Students With Disabilities.
2. #342.1-Local Agency Special Education Program.
3. #342.11-IDEA (Individuals With Disabilities Education Act) Team Process Summary.

B. Approval of January 25, 2017, Regular and January 28, 2017, Special Meeting Minutes.
C. Approval of January Bills.

IX. Future Agenda —February 22, 2017, Regular Meeting Agenda.

X. Executive Session — Discuss District Administrator Evaluatio

This notice may be supplemented with additions to the age
Board prior to the meeting. A final agenda will be posted and
24 hours prior to the meeting or no later than 2 hours prior to the
emergency.

Upon reasonable notice, all reasonable efforts wil : o0 accommodate the needs of people
with disabilities through appropriate aids and s¢ ional information or to request
this service, contact the District Office at 340 ,

more specific information about the agenda items shg 3387 or 882-3386 at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Posted: 1/4/17



